## High Desert Nordic Association bylaws

### ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this corporation shall be the High Desert Nordic Association. The initials HDNA identify us.

### ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

Section 1. The purpose of the High Desert Nordic Association shall be to foster an interest in cross-country skiing and any activities associated with it in the South-Central Idaho area.

Section 2. The program of the HDNA shall be both educational and recreational in scope, providing individuals the opportunities to improve their skiing and outdoor skills. In addition, the HDNA shall undertake various projects to improve, maintain, and add to the skiing opportunities for its members.

#### ARTICLE III - DIRECTORS

Section 1. The corporate power to conduct the business and manage the property of the HDNA shall be vested in a Board of Directors.

Section 2. The Board of Directors of the HDNA shall consist of five (5) to\_seven (7) members. Directors shall be elected from the general membership.

Section 3. Directors shall be elected to serve two-year terms, with two (2) or three (3) directors elected in even-numbered years and three (3) or four (4) directors elected in odd-numbered years at the Annual Business Meeting.

Section 4. In all cases, the consent of the nominee must be obtained prior to the election.

Section 5. A Director may be removed from office through a majority vote of members at a general meeting. At that time, the vacancy thus created must be filled by the membership.

Section 6. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the President, provided notice is given to all available Directors.

Section 7. The majority of the Directors present at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be necessary to decide upon any question that may come before the meeting pertaining to the welfare of the HDNA, provided that a quorum is present. A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum. A quorum of the Board is necessary to decide any question pertaining to the welfare of the HDNA. A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum.

Section 8. Whenever any vacancy shall occur in the office of Director for any reason other than removal, it shall be filled by appointment by the Board of Directors. For that purpose, a simple majority of the Board of Directors is necessary for appointment, and the person so appointed shall hold office for the remainder of the unexpired term until the next election.

## ARTICLE IV - DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Immediately after the elections at the Annual Business Meeting, it shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to elect the following officers from within the Board: President, Vice-President, and Secretary/Treasurer.

Section 2. The Board of Directors shall conduct all business of the HDNA between meetings of the membership and expend those funds deemed necessary to carry on the activities of the HDNA.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

## High Desert Nordic Association bylaws

Section 1. The officers of the HDNA shall be the same as the officers of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. These officers shall be elected by the Board of Directors to serve for one year or until their successors are elected, and their terms of office shall begin at the close of the Annual Business Meeting at which they are elected.

Section 3. These officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these By-Laws and by the parliamentary authority adopted by the HDNA.

#### ARTICLE VI - DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1. The President shall prepare agendas for and preside over all meetings of the HDNA and of the Board of Directors and shall conduct business of the HDNA in accordance with the By-Laws, other rules and regulation of the HDNA, and the parliamentary authority adopted by the HDNA. The President shall have the power to appoint all committee chairmen and shall act as representative of the HDNA. The President shall be a joint signer on all banking accounts.

Section 2. The Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President in his absence.

Section 3. The Secretary /Treasurer shall attend to all correspondence of the HDNA and shall read communications at meetings of the HDNA, shall take minutes of each meeting of the HDNA and the Board of Directors, and shall maintain a roster of all members. He shall handle all funds, issue receipts, and submit a financial report at appropriate times and shall be a joint signer on all banking accounts.

### ARTICLE VII - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. There shall be two classes of active membership: Single members and Family Members.

Section 2. Active members shall consist of all persons with an active interest in the purpose of the HDNA as described in Article II and who have paid their annual dues and assessments.

Section 3. Family Members are Single Members who belong to the same family living at one address.

Section 4. All active members in good standing and over the age of 16 on the date of the shall be entitled to one vote each and shall be eligible to hold office if they are aged 16 or older.

Section 5. Annual dues will be decided at the Board Meeting before the Annual Meeting and submitted to the membership at the Annual Meeting for approval. The Single Member dues will not exceed \$60 per year and the Family Member dues will not exceed \$100 per year.

Section 6. Each member shall pay annual dues to the association. Family Membership fee shall cover all family members according to Section 3.

Section 7 All such dues collected shall be turned over to the Secretary /Treasurer to be added to the funds of the HDNA.

Section 8. The annual dues shall be payable upon joining the HDNA and will apply only to the membership year in which joining occurs.

Section 9. The membership year will be Jan 1 – December 31.

- a. Dues for the upcoming membership year may be paid starting on October 31.
- b. Dues will be considered delinquent on Feb 1.

Section 10. The fiscal year of the HDNA shall be from January 1 – December 31.

# High Desert Nordic Association bylaws

#### ARTICLE VIII - MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Section 1. An annual business meeting shall be held between Jan 1 and March 31 of each year. This meeting date shall be decided upon by the Board of Directors and will be open to all active members.

Section 2. There shall be business meetings of the active membership to be held at such times and places as designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. The President may call additional meetings of the HDNA when deemed necessary by the Board.

Section 4. Fifteen (15) percent of the total active membership shall represent a quorum.

Section 5. The HDNA shall hold not less than three events each year. These events shall feature educational and/or recreational activities, which further the purpose of the HDNA.

### ARTICLE IX - COMMITTEES

Section 1. Auditing Committee of no more than three members shall be appointed by the President at the HDNA Annual Business Meeting whose duty it shall be to audit the Secretary/Treasurer's accounts at the close of the fiscal year and to report to the Board.

Section 2. Other committees, standing or special, shall be appointed by the President as the HDNA shall from time to time deem necessary to carry on the work of the HDNA. The President shall be an exofficio member of all committees.

### ARTICLE X— PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the HDNA in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these By-Laws and any special rules of order the HDNA may adopt.

#### **ARTICLE XI - AMENDMENTS**

These bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of attending members at any business meeting provided that each active HDNA member has been sent notice in writing of the proposed amendments ten (10) days before the meeting.

# ARTICLE XII- DISSOLUTION

If at any time the HDNA dissolves; any funds remaining in the treasury shall be distributed directly to the United States Olympic Nordic Team.